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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited) (‘the Company'), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘'Ind AS') specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022,
and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI') together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 24 to the financial statements regarding the Scheme of Arrangement (‘Scheme’)
between TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited (‘Transferor’) and the Company, which has been
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (‘NCLT) vide its order dated
8 October 2018. The Company had given effect to the Scheme from the appointment date specified in the
Scheme i.e. 1 April 2017. The accounting treatment prescribed by the Scheme is different from that prescribed
under Ind AS 103 Business Combinations as explained in the said note. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors Report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's repart thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation;

10. We communicate with management, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Other Matter
11. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 were audited by the predecessor

auditor, BSR & Co. LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements vide their
audit report dated 30 November 2021,
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Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Report an Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b

—

d

—

e)

9)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2022 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us :

i.  The Company, as detailed in note 27 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2022;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022;

il There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022;
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(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

iv. a.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2022.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No:001076N/N500013

N i D=

Vijay D. Jain
Partner

Membership No:1173961

UDIN:22117961AXESDW5406

Place: Mumbai

Date: 29 September 2022
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Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Worldline ePayments India Private Limited (formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India
Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased
manner over a period of 2 years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment and right of use assets were verified during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (including investment properties)
(other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(j)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988
(as amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(il)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure A (Contd)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to he
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services / business activities.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been
slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred

in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute except for the following:

Name of the statute Nature of Gross Amount Period to Forum where
dues Amount paid which the dispute is
(Rs.in under amount pending
Lakhs) Protest relates
(Rs.in
Lakhs)
Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 16 - AY 2003-04 Assessing
Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 20 - AY 2004-05 Assessing
Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 11 - AY 2005-06 Assessing
Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 5 - AY 20086-07 Assessing
Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 146 B AY 2007-08 Assessing
Officer
Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 9 - AY 2008-09 Assessing
Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 1,219 1,219 AY 2017-18 Commissioner
of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 3 - AY 2018-19 Commissioner
of Income Tax
(Appeals)
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Annexure A (Contd)

(viii)

(ix)

(9 (@

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

()

Name of the statute Nature of Gross Amount | Period to Forum where
dues Amount paid which the dispute is
(Rs.in under amount pending
Lakhs) Protest | relates
(Rs.in
Lakhs)

The Maharashtra Stamp Duty 740 - FY 2017-18 Chief

Stamp Act, 1958 Controlling
Revenue
Authority, Pune
Profession Tax Act, Profession 17 4 FY 2017-18 Deputy

1975 (Maharashtra) Tax Commissioner
of Profession
Tax (Appeals)
Employees State ESIC 18 9 FY 2008 -10 | Employees
Insurance Act, 1948 FY 2010-11 State Insurance
Court, Mumbai

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us
by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us
by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year. -
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Annexure A {Contd)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (@)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi)

(d)

(xvi)

(xviii)

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The
details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc,, as
required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

The Company has an internal audit system as required as per the provisions of section 138 of the
Act but, in our opinion, the same is not commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period
under audit.

We were unable to obtain some of the Internal Audit Reports of the Company on timely basis, hence
the Internal Audit Reports have been considered by us, only to the extent made available to us.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information
and explanations given to us by the management and the response received by us pursuant to our
communication with the outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, objections or concerns raised
by the outgoing auditors.
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Annexure A (Contd)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of
Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Coempany is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and
when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has met the criteria as
specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however, in the absence of average net profits in the immediately
three preceding years, there is no requirement for the Company to spend any amount under
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No:001076N/N500013

Nijam DT

Vijay D. Jain

Partner

Membership No:117961

UDIN:22117961AXESDW5406

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 September 2022
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Worldline ePayments
India Private Limited (formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited) on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
{formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited) (‘the Company’) as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™ ) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements .
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Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure B (Contd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reascnable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No:001076N/N500013

/
~J lj = D= =
Vijay D Jain
Partner
Membership No:117961
UDIN:22117961AXESDW5406

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 September 2022
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Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Privaie Limited)

Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

ASSETS

(A) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work in progress
{c) Goodwill
(d} Other intangible assets
{e) Intangible assets under development
{f) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Other financial assels
(g) Deferred tax assets (net)
(h) Income tax assels (net)
(i) Other assets
Total non-current assets

(B) Current assels
{a} Financial assels
(i) Trade receivables
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents
{iii) Bank balances oiher than (i) above
(iv) Other financial assets
(b) Other assets
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(A) Equity

(a) Share capital

(b) Other equity

Total equity

(B) Liabilities
(I) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitics
(i) Lease liabilities
(b) Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

(IT) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities
(i1) Trade payables
1. Total cutstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small enterprises
2. Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other liabilities
{¢) Provisions
Total current liabilitics

Total Equity and Liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 001076N/N500013

\J'\)M-DM"?

Vijay D. Jain
Partner
Membership No: 117961

{ \«WJDTO}I-
7 \-. —el o

Mumbai
29th September, 2022
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Note

3)
(3a)
4
4
{36

f3)
7
8

®)

©
(1
()
@
)

(12
(i3

(25)
(16

f23)
1)

(13}
f17)
{16

2

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

1,552 1,854
335 B
- 8,450
224 34
181 25
1 1
354 2,931
3,329 1461
8,626 8,240
43 28
14,645 23,024
5,874 4210
29,677 6,765
36 18,535
1,135 1,620
293 208
37,015 31,338
51,660 54,362
2,264 2,264
30,159 35,326
32,423 37,590
611 950
238 205
849 1,245
339 299
20 81
13,703 10,997
794 1,722
2,373 1,472
1,159 956
18,388 15,527
51,660 54,362

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)
CIN: UT4200MH2005PTC 192623
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Dirccror
DIN: 03597514
29th September, 2022

esh Narasimhan
Direcior and CEC

DIN: 08540135
29th September, 2022

Kﬁgﬁm Shah
Company Secreiary
Membership No: A55163
29th September, 2022



Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless atherwise staled)

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(1) Income
{a) Revenue from operations {8 45,831 43,324
(b) Other income (net) (19) 1,132 1,493
Total Income 46,963 44,817
(2) Expenses
(a) Employee benefits expense (20} 5,072 5,024
{b) Finance costs (21} 108 97
(c) Depreciation and amortisation expense 22} 9,197 9,328
(d) Other expenses
1. Operating cost {23a) 33,976 31,343
2. Other expenses (235) 5,648 3,366
Total Expenses 54,008 49 158
(3) (Loss) before tax (1-2) (7,045) (4,341)
(4) Tax expense
(a) Current tax - 2
(b) Defierred tax charge / (eredit) (34) (1,871) 3,311
Tolal tax expense / (eredit) (1,871) 3311
(5) Loss for the year 55317-“ [?,6522

(6) Other comprehensive income
(1) Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(a) Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (33) 10 27
(b) Deferred tax on Employee Benefit Actarial Gain (34 3) (N
Total other com prehensive income 7 20
(7) Total comprehensive loss for the year 167 (7,632)
Earning per share (28)

Basic and diluted eamning per share (Rs. per share) (22.86) (33.80)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 ta 41 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Waorldline ePayments India Private Limited

Firm's Registration No: 001076N/MN300013 {formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)

. CIN: U74200MH2POSPTC192623

iy DI

\L & .

Vijay D. Jain Ramakrislinan Ramamurthy Ramesh Narasimhan

Partrier Divecior Director and CEQ

Membership No: 117961 DIN: 03597514 DIN: (8540135

29th September, 2022 20th Sepmm

%Shah

Company Secretary
Menmbership No: A55163
259th September, 2022

Mumbai
29th September, 2022




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(formerly kmown as Ingenico ePaymenis India Private Limited)

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars

{A) Cashflow from operaing activities

Loss before tax

Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amontisation

Allowance for expected credit loss

Provision for doubtful deposits

Bad debts written-off

Interest expense on finance lease

Balances written-back

Other miscellancous income

(Profit) on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets *
Interest on income-tax refund

Interest ineome on bank deposits

Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Adjustment for changes in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) in other assets

Decreasef(Increase) in other financial assets
Increase/{Decrease) in trade payables

Increase in provisions

(D it in financial liabilitics
Increase/{Decrease) in eurrent liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid (net of interest on refund of tax)
Net cashflow from operating activitics

(1) CastyfTow fron investing activitles

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and CWIP
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment *

Interest received on bank deposits

Maturity of /{Investments in) bank deposits

Net cashflow from investing activiti

{C) Crshflow froan financing activities
Payment of leaze liabilities

Interest paid on lease liabilities

Net cashflow from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

B

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
S
BHDY
o O
S ‘-‘E‘c!
o

r{"‘ *i—-,,f
Ll &
A

\
A\

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(7,045) (4,341)
9,197 9,328
- 9
- 33
11 16
104 96
40} (@5)
(241) 3
0 (5)
a7 (35)
(762) (1,243)
(10) (51)
1,136 3,759
(1,661) 3350
(10m 210
220 (599
2,884 (642)
157 349
(1,075) 390
901 (511)
2,462 6,075
@71) (1,019)
2,11 5,056
(979) (216)
0 13
1,247 LI171
20,856 {4,170)
21,124 (3.202)
(299) (362)
(104) (96)
(403) (458)
22,912 1,396
6,765 5,369
2677 6165




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(formely known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limted)

Statement of Cash flow (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash in hand *
Balance with banks:
In current accounts
In fixed deposit account with original maturity of 3 months or less
Total cash and cash equivalents
* Represents value kess than Rs. 1 lakh

As per our report of even date attached,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Finn's Registration No: 001076N/N500013

—
Vijay D. Jain
Partner
Membership No: 117961 e

Mumbai
29th September, 2022

Notes:

As at Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
0 1
1311 4,116
28,366 2,648
29,677 6,765

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)
CIN; UT4200MHZ008PTC192623

\

\
Ramak¥ishnan Ramamurthy R5 rasimhan
Directar Director and CEQ

DIN: 03597514 DIN: 08540135

29th September, 2022 29th Sep:w 22

A= —Rushal Shah
Company Secretary

Membership No: A55163
29th Scptember, 2022

1. This statement of cash flaws has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 - 'Statement of Cash Flows'

2. Cash and cash equivalent represent Cash and bank balance (refer Note 10)




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

(A)

(B)

Equity share capital
Particulars Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2020 2,164

Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,264

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance ns at 31 March 2022 2264

Other equity

Parliculars Reserye and Surplus Total attributable Total equity
Securities premium Retained 10 owners of the
earnings Company

Balance as at 1 April 2020 57471 (14,513) 41,958 42,958
Loss for the year - {7,652) (7.651) (7,652)
Other comprehensive income - 27 27 27
Deferred tax on Employee Benefit Actuarial Gain / Loss - (7 (7) (]
Total Comprehensive Loss - (7,632) (7,632) (7,632)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 57471 (22,145) 35,326 35,326
Balance as at 1 April 2021 57471 (22,145) 35,326 35326
Loss for the year - (5,174) (5,174} (5,174)
Other comprehensive income - 10 10 10
Deferred tax on Employee Benefit Actuarial Gain / Loss - (3) {3) (3)
Toial Comprehensive Loss - (5,167) 15,167) (5,167}
Balance as at 31 March 2022 57471 (27312) 30,159 30,159

MNature and purpose of reserves

(n) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

(b) Retained earnings

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Company is recognised and accumulated under the heading of
retained earnings. At the end of (he year, the loss after tax is transferred from (he statement of profit and loss to retained camings.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
Firm's Registration No: 001076N/N500013 (formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)
CIN: U74200MH2005PTC19262

e D — \ } Ve .
Vijay D. Jain Ramakrishnan Ramamurthy Ramesh Narasimhan
Partner Divecior Director and CEOQ
Membership No: 117961 ) ) DIN: 03597514 DIN: 08540135
AT 29th September, 2022 29& Siptembtr, 2022

L"KES-I:M Shah

Company Secretary

Mumbai
29th September, 2022

Membership No: A55163
29th September, 2022




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(formerly known as Ingenica ePayments India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

1

@i

(iii)

22

Company overview

Worldline ePayments India Private Limited (formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited) (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 3 February
2005 under the Companies Act, 1956. The main business of the Company is to acl as an intermediary between merchants and banks for electronic payment
services. It is also engaged in providing recurring payment services to its clients in the form of ECS, NACH, Direct Debit, e-mandate services and such
ancillary activities to payment services. The Company also acts as an intermediary to facilitate delivery, review and payment of bills payable to any utility
provider, service provider efc., in respect of services or utilities availed and to receive/send instructions/ce ications in respect of the same. The
Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Worldline e-Commerce Solutions BV/SRL (Erstwhile Ing ico e-Co Solutions BVBA/SPRL). During the

year ended 31 March 2018, TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited was amalgamated with the Company.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Tnd AS') as per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company has consistently applied accounting policies to all periods.
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors as on 29 September 2022,

Basis of measurement

The financial statements has been prepared on a historical cost basis except for following items:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value.

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value,

Use of judgement and estimates

While preparing financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, the Company makes certain estimates and assumptions that require subjective and complex
judgments. These judgments affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the statement of finaneial position date and the reported amount of income and expenses for the reporting period. Financial reporting
results rely on our estimate of the effect of certain matters that are inherently uncertain. Future events rarely develop exactly as forecasted and the best
estimates require adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The Company continually evaluate
these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information,

Revisions lo accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncerfainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2021 is included in the following notes:

Note 2.6 — Recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used.
Note 2.8 and 2.12 — Impairment test; key assumptions for underlying recoverable amounts.
Note 2.17 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations.
Note 2,16 and 2.18 — Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow
Note 2,11 — Impairment of trade receivables.
Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in its Balance Sheet based on current versus non-current classification.
An agsel is classified as current when it is:
a) Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
¢) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to scttle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

2
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24
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(i)

2.5

Significant accounting policies (Continned)

Current versus non-current elassification (Continued)

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

a) it is expeeted to be settled in normal operating cyele,

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c} it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

d) there is no uncanditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of service
and the time between the acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascerlained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of eurrent and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Segment reporting

Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments, The Company operates in one
reportable business segment i.e. 'Payment processing services'. Further, since all of its business takes place in India, the Company does not have an reportable
geographical segment.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s fi 1 and p tion y. The Company determines its
own functional currency (the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates) and items included in the financial statements
of the Company are measured using that functional currency.

Traunsactions and balaices

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monelary assels and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencics are retranslated into the Company's functional eurrency at the rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions,

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at reporting date exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Stat t of Profit and Loss.

Revenue
Income from operations consist of revenue from providing payment processing services.

Revenue is recognized when a contract exists with the customer, measured based on the amount entitled to be received for the performance obligation and
recognized when it satisfies its performance obligation (transfer of control) which may be either overtime or at a point in time.

Revenue from payment processing services include online and offline services, revenue for which is recognised as the services are rendered based on
contractual terms.

Tntegration fees, which do not result in the transfer of a service are normally recognised when the future services are provided,

Maintenance services revenue are recognised when it is not unreasonable to expect ultimate collection and is accounted raleably over the period.

Risk & t services revenue and charge-back processing fees are recognized as the services are rendered.

Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contracts are unbundled into separately identifiable performance obligations and the consideration is allocated to those identifiable performance obligations
on the basis of their relative standalone selling price of each distinct goods or service promised in the contract. Revenue is recognised for respective
performance obligation either at the point in time or overtime, as applicable.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue eamed over billings on contracls. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only
act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual tems.

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.

Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for
contracts where the revenue recopnized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the Company’s performance completed to date, typically to
those contracts where invoicing is based on transaction processed.

[Fse of significant fudgements in revenne recogiiiion

The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises 1o transfer multiple services to n customer. The Company assesses the services promised in
a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract, Identification of distinet performance obligation involves judgement to determine
the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(farmerly known as Ingenico ePaymenis India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 3] March 2022

2
2.6

2.7

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Income tax i
Current tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable or tax receivable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax
rale adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Peferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
al the time of the {ransaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is seftled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. The cxistence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only fo the extent that it has sufficient taxable
temporary differences or there is convineing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realised.

Deferred tax assets —unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and linbilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current fax assets and tax liabilities are offsct where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred fax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrang; t qualifies to be a lease based on the requirements of the relevant standard. Computation on of the lease liabilities
and right-to-use assels requires management to estimate the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease lerm as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to
excrcise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not o exercise an aption to terminate
a lease, it considers all relevant facts and eireumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the Option to extend the lease, or not
to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable pericd of a lease.

The di rate is gi lly based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar

characteristics.

The Company as a lessee

"The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of

the lease and

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset."

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recopnizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU™and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in whicl it is a lessee, except for leases with a tenn of twelve months or less (shori-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and
low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term

of the lease.




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(formerly known as Ingenico ePaymenis India Private Lintited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

2
2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.12

Significant accounting policies (Cominied)

Leases (Continned)

The Company recognises righl-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of
the right -of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right -of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight -line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use assets or the end of the
lease term. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment
loss, if any, is recognised in the Stat t of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.
Generally, the Company uses its iner tal borrowing rate as the discount rate. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a comresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the Company changes its t as to whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. For leases with

reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the
incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest ratc method, It is remeasured wien (here is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in Company’s t of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

Lease liability is further bifurcated into current and non-current portion; and (he right-of-use assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and
lease payments have been classified as financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flow.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning | April 2019 wherein it has used the modified retrospective approach,
where it has recognised the lease liability on initial application (i.e. 1 April 2019) at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
company's (lessee's) incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application & it has recognised the a right-of-use asset at the date of initial application,
at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance
sheet immediately before the date of initial application. Accordingly, the Company has not restaled eomparative information.

For transition, the Company has elected not to apply the requircments of Ind AS 116 to leases which are expiring within 12 months from the date of
transition by class of asset and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by lease basis.

The Company has also used the practical expedient provided by the standard and therefore, has not reassessed whetlier a contract, is or contains a lease, at
the date of initial application, relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous, applying Ind AS 37 immediately before the date of initial application as
an alternative to performing an impairment review and used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate
the lease.

The nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset, and finance cost for interest accrued on
lease liability.

The Company does nol have any lease contracts wherein it acts as a lessor.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets arc tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impainment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, asscts are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are Jargely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shorl-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indireet method, where by net profit (loss) befare tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or aceruals of past or future eperating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregaied.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. The impainnent losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the assel.

A. Financial asscis

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. The classification depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the financinl assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

{I) Classification
The financial assets are classified in the following measurement categories:

a) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
b) Those to be measured at amortised cost. g
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Significant accounting policies (Continited)
Financial instruments (Continued)

A. Financial assets (Continued)

(1) Classification (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL}

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, debt sceurities and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value with net
changes in fair value presented as finance costs in profit or loss. Interests, dividends and gain/loss on foreign exchange on financial assets at fair value
throngh profit ar loss are included separately in other income.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and forcign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using
the effective interest rate method,

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or ather comprehensive income. For investments in debl
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is hield.

(IT) Measurement
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset,
There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments.

Amortised cost
The Company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows, and
b) The contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

TFinancial assets at amortised cost include trade and other receivables and other financial assets. After initial measurement at fair value, the financial assets
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amorlisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recogni d in the Stat t of Profit
and Loss in other expense.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The Company classifies its financial assets at other comprehensive income only if both of the following criteria are met:

a) financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows on specificd dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

b) selling financial assets.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Fair value through profit or loss is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

(I1T) Derccognition of financial assefs

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assels expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred fi ial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

(IV) Impairment of financial assels

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its assets carried al amortised cost and FYTOCI debt
instruments. The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company fo track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recopnizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk sinee initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrament improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in eredit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.
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Significant of accounting policies (Continured)

Financial instruments (Cenfinned)

A. Tinancial assets (Continned)

(1V) Impairment of financial assets (Continned)

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL is
a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date, ECL is the difference between all

contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash lows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR, When estimating the cash flows, the Company considers the following:

(i) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension ete.) over the expected life of the financial instrument.

(i) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral lo the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix lo determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision matrix is
based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward- looking estimates, At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are analysed,

B. Financial liabilities

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilitics at initial recognition.

(I) Classification

The financial liabilities are classified in the following measurement categories:

a) Those to be measured as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,

b) Those to be measured at amortised cost.

(IT) Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the ease of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss.
Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade payables, employee benefits payable and other payables.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the EIR
methed. Any difference between the proceeds net of transaction costs and the amount due on settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the
term of the borrowing.

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest charge over the relevant effective
interest rate period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash outflow (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where apprepriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. This category generally applies to borrowings.

(I11) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

(1V) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company
or the counterparty.

Interest and dividend income
Interest income
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial assets, interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate

(EIR), which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter periad, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the camying amount (o its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original EIR of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired financial asset is
recognised using the original EIR. :

HAT

O
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Signification accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are 1 at cost / d d cost, less lated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its werking condition for its intended use and estimated attributable costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which itis located.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s camying t or recognised as a sep asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as
ineurred,

Property, plant and equipment not available for intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress,

Depreciation methods, estimated nuseful lives and residual value

Assels are depreciated on straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of asset, as determined by the management or as per rates prescribed under
Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013,

Class of asset Life of the asset|
Office equipment 5 years
Computers and accessories 3 years
Furnitire and fixtures Qver the primary lease period of the premises
Vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation is complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

A property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the fi ial on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal.
Losses arising fram retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the Statement of profil and loss.

Intangible assets
Recognition and measnrement

Identifiable intangible assefs are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow
{o the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. Intangible assels are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Intangible assels are amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use. The
estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a ber of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other
economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash flows from the asset.

Amortisation methods and periods

The Company amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Class of asset Life of the asset

Computer software 5 years

Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date.
An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefils are expected from its use and disposal.

Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Goodwill arising on amalgamation in accordance with court scheme

Goodwill arising on amalgamalion of TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited has been recognised in accordance with court scheme. Said goodwill
has been amortised in accordance with the court scheme for which Company has estimated useful life of 5 years.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is prabable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognisced as interest expense.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an
assel, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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Significant accounting policics (Continnerd)

Employee benefits
(i) Shorr-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees” services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are scttled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(i} Share based compensation

The Company recognises compensation expense relating to share based payments using the fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102- Share based payment.
Selected employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of equity setiled instruments, for rendering services over a defined vesting period and
for ultimate holding company’s performance based stock options over the defined period. The estimated fair value of awards is charged to income on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award with a corresponding increase to share options
outstanding account,

(iii) Other long-terim empioyee benefit obligat

The liabilities for eamed leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respeet of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilitics in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expecled to occur,

(v} Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity ebligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

The present value of the defined benefit cbligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end
of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximaling to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost
is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur,
directly in other comprehensive income, They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailiments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as
past service cost.

Defined contribuiion plan

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident fund as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or
present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recopnized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is considered
remote.

Earnings per share
(i} Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company;
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year,
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.19  Earnings per share (Continued)

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted eamnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.20 Rounding off amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless
otherwise stated.

2.21  Standards issued but not effective
There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on 31st March, 2022
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(3)  Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Computers and Vehicles Furnitureand  Office equipment  Right to wse assels - Total
Accessories fixtures Buildings

Gross carrying amount

Asat 1 April 2020 1,078 17 483 120 1,175 2,874
Additions 143 & s 11 T2 o1
Disposals 6 17 139 6 406 504
As at 31 March 2021 1,216 - an 105 1,481 3,181
Accumulated depreciation

As at | Apnl 2020 566 17 124 57 362 1,126
Depreciation 242 = 121 21 404 788
Disposals 6 17 13% 19 406 587
As at 31 March 2021 802 - 106 59 360 1,327
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 414 - 273 46 1121 1,854 |
Gross carrying amount

As ot 1 April 2021 1,216 - 379 105 1,481 3181
Additions* 366 - - 0 - 366
Disposals* 8 - - [ - 1
As a1 31 March 2022 1,574 - 379 105 1,481 3,539
Accumulated deprecintion

Asal | April 2021 H0Z - 106 59 360 1,327
Deprecialion 256 - 85 15 3z 668
Disposals* 8 - - (1] - 8
As al 31 March 2022 1,050 - 191 7 672 1,987
Net carrying amount as at 31 Marck 2022 524 - 188 31 409 1,552

* Represent valug less than Rs, 1 lakh

S NDIOX
S
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(3a)

(3b)

“)

Capital work in progress

Amount in CWIP for the period of

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 3 years Tatal
Projeets in progress 335 - - - 335
Projeets temperarily suspended - - = u; =
As at 31 March 2022 335 - = - 335
Projects in progress - - - - -
Prajects temporanly suspended - - - . 4
As at 31 Mareh 2021 - - - - =
‘As on he date of the balance sheet, there are no capital work-in-progress projects whose completion is averdue or has exceeded ihe cosl, based on approved plan.
Particulars Total

Opening balance at 1 April 2020 -

Additions 3

Less: Capitalised during the year -

Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 -

Opening balance al 1 April 2021 -

Additions 335

Less: Capitalised during the vear L

Closing balance as at 31 March 2022 335

ible assets under develop
Amount in i ible assets under devel for the period of

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years  More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 181 - - - 181
Projects temporarily suspended - - < - -
As at 31 March 2022 181 - - - 181
Projects in progress 25 - - - 25
Prajects temporarily suspended - - - . ;
As at 31 March 2021 25 = = - 23

Particulars Total

Opening balance at 1 April 2020 -

Additions (salary capitalised) 25

Transfer 1o intangibles =

Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 15

Opening balance at 1 April 2021 25

Additions (snlary and professional fees) 218

Less: Transfer to intangibles 62

Closing balance s at 31 March 2022 181

ible nssets

Particulars Computer Goodwill * Total
software

Gross carrying amount

Asat 1 April 2020 676 42,233 42,909

Additions 1 - 1

Dispesals & - &

As al 31 March 2021 677 42,233 42,910

Accumulated amortisation

Asat 1 April 2020 553 15333 25,986

Amortisation 90 8,450 8,540

Disposals = & v

(As at 31 March 2021 643 33,783 34426

Nel earrying amount as at 31 March 2021 34 8,450 8,484

Gross carrying amounnt

As ot 1 April 2021 677 42,233 42,010

Additions 269 - 269

Disposals = = "

As ot 31 March 2022 246 42,233 43,179

Accumnlated amortisation

As al | Apnil 2021 643 33,783 34,426

Amorfisalion 79 8,450 8,519

Disposals - & =

Asal 31 March 2022 a2z 42,233 42,955

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 224 - 224

*+ Refer Note No. 24 - Goodwill arising on account of the amalgamntion.

s on he date of the brlance sheet, here are no Intangible assets under development projects whose completion is overdua or hus exceeded the cosl, based on approved plan.




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly knovwn as Ingenico ePayments India Frivate Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
asal 34 March 2022
{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As nt Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(5) Investments
Non-citrrent investments (measured at cost)

Investment in equity shares of Saraswat Co-Operative Bank (unquoted) 1 1
(5,000 (Previous year: 5,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 ea ch, fully paid)

Total non-current investments 1 1

(6) Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good 5874 4,210
Significant increase in credil risk - =
Credit impaired 208 226
6,082 4436
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (208) (226)
‘Total current trade receivables 5874 4,210

Trade receivables aging schedule

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Asat 31 March 2022 Less than 6 months 6 manths - 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total

Unisputed Trade recelvables - considered good 5,846 1 3 = - 5.862

Thndtisputed Trade Receivables -which have
significant inceease in credit risk

Undisputed Trade Recevables ~Credit Impaired - 93 51 36 0 2041

Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good 10 | 1 - - 12

Dispaied Trade ivables ~ which lave sigui ” R R . ~

increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables — credit Impaired = - 3 - - ]
5,856 105 65 36 a0 6,082

As at 31 March 2021
Undi Trade recei — considdered good 1,143 45 § 4 s 4,200

Undisputed Trade Receivables —u lich have
ignilicant increase in credit risk

Uredisputed Trade Reccivables ~Credit Impaired - 66 75 16 19 226
Disputed Trie Receivables—considered pood E 2 - - - 1

Disputed Trade Receivables — which have sigificus
increase in credit risk

Dispated Trade Receivables — credit inpaired . % a - . o
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As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(7} Other financial assets
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Non-current financial assets
Interest acerued but not due on fixed deposits with bank - 208
Bank deposits due to mature afier 12 months from the reporting date - 2,353
Bank deposits (Lien against performance guarantee) - 4
Security deposits
Security deposit to related parties (Refer note no. 30) 123 123
Security deposit to other than refated parties
Unsecured, considered good 231 243
Credit impaired 53 53
Less: Impairment allowance for security deposit (53) (53)
Total non-current financinl assets 354 2,931
Current financial assets
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits with bank 81 358
Unbilled receivables 981 1,209
Security deposits 2 2
Others - receivables 96 76
Less: Credit impaired (25) {25)
Total current financial assets 1,135 1,620




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(foruerly knowi as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as ai 31 March 2022
{Curreney: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(8) Deferred tax assets (net)
Significant components of deferred tax nssels
Deferred tax nssets
Difference between book and tax value of PPE and intangible assets 137 130
Difference between book and tax value of amortisation of goodwill - (2,126)
Carry forward loss and unabsorbed depreciation 2,503 2430
Provision for doubtful debts 52 57
Provision for doubtful deposits and ad 17 17
Provision for bonus 119 317
Provision for leave encashment 39 30
Lease liabilities (nel of right-of-use assets) 36 3z
Provision for retirement benefits 108 87
Frovision for other exy and chargebac 314 483
Legal and professional exp {for amal, ion) amortised - 2
3329 1,461

Dieferred tax nssets have been recognised as at 31 March 2022 as the Company expects utilisation of the unused lax losses and taxable/deduetible temporary dilferences within
its approprizte period of carry forward. The unutilised tax losses of the Company are allowed 1o be carried forward for a period of eight years under the applicable tax laws and
unutilised tax depreciation ean be carried forward indefinitely.

{9) Other assets

Non-curremt assets

Unsecured considered good

Prepaid expenses 43 28
Total non-current assets 43 18
Chrrent assefs

Unsecured considered good

Prepaid expenses 85 141
Advance for expenses a5 10
Goods and services tax credit available 123 57
Total current assels 293 208

(10) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand * ] 1
Balance with banks

In current accounts 1,311 4,116
In fixed deposit account with original maturity of 3 months or less 18,366 2,648
Total cash and cash equivalents 29,677 6,765

* Represent value less than Rs. 1 lakh
Nodal balance:

The Company has arrangs ts for Nodal with various banks. The nodal accounts are operated as per Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines pertaining to
seltlement of payments for el ic payment ions involving intermediaries. The bal n nodal ts rep: money collected from on tr ti
undertaken and is used for settling of dues to various I as per RBI guideli

(11) Other bank balances

Bank deposits dug to mature before twelve months from the reparting date 7 18,501
Deposits (lien against performance guarantees) due fo mature before twelve months from the reporting date 29 34
Total other bank balances 36 ]8i535
Details of hank deposits
Bank deposits with original maturity of three months er less included under 'Cash and cash equivalents' 28,366 2,648
Bank deposits due to mature within twelve months of the reporting date included under "Other bank balances" 36 18,535
Bank deposits due to mature afler twelve months of the reporting date included under "Other non-current financial assets” - 2,357
23 540

28,402




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Frivate Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Confinued)
as at 31 Mareh 2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(12) Equity share capital

As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

Authorised

98,070,000 [31 March 2021: 98,070,000] equity shares of Rs 10 each 9,807 9.807

9,807 9,807
Issied, subscribed and fully paid-up
22,637,413 [31 March 2021: 22,637,413] equity shares of Rs. 10 each 2,264 2,264

2,264 2,264

(a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares ding at the beginning nnd at the end of the year
Particulars Apiat At
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares
Al the commencement of the year 22,637,413 2,264 22,637413 2264
Shares issued during the year i & 3 .
At the end of the year 22,637,413 2,264 22, 637!4 13 2264

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the sharcholders at the Annual General Meeting excepl in case of interim dividend, In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive balance of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts and the

distribution shall be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(e) Details of shareholding

Particulars aat gt
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of shares Amount in (Rs.) Number of shares Amount in (Rs.)
| Equity shares of Rs. 10 ench fully paid-up held by
Worldline e-Commerce Solutions BV/SRL
: . 264
(Erstwhile Ing e R BVBA/SPRL) 22,637,412 2,264 22,637.412 2
Ingenico Holdings Azia 11 Limited * 1 0 1 1]
* Represents value less than Rts, | kikh
{d) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares
|Particnlars ATht praal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
% of total :
Number of shares  sharesin the ~ Number of shares it okl shacesin
the class
clnss
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully poid-up held by
Worldline e-Commerce Sohutions BV/SRL "
(Ersiwhile Ingenico &-C ey BVBA/SPRL) 21,637412 99.99% 22,637412 99.99%
(e) Particulars of share held by Promoters at the end of the year
Promoter Nam Az ok Adat
! ¥ 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Num ber of % of total shares % Change during Number of % of total shares in % Change during the
shares in the class the year shares the class year
Worldline e-Commerce Solutions BV/SRL
(Erstwhile Ingenico e-Commerce Solutions 22,637,412 99,99% 0% 22,637,412 99.9%% 0%

BVBA/SPRL)

{1} Buy back of shares or shares allotted by way of bonus shaves:

The Company has nat made any buy-back of shares, nor there has been an issue of shares by way of bonus share or issue of share pursuant 1o contract withoul payment being

received / paid in cash for the period of five years immediately 1 fing the bal sheet date.




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as ai 31 March 2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(13) Other equity

Securities premium
Retained carnings

Total other equity

Movement of other equity

Securilies premium

At the commencement of the year

On shares issued during the year

Al the end of the year

Retnined enrnings

At the commencement of the year

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Deferred tax on Employee Benefit Actuarial Gain / Loss

At the end of the year

Asat
31 Manrch 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

57,471 57471
(27,312) (22,145)
30,159 35,326
57,47 57471
57471 57,471
(22,145) (14,513)
(5,174) (7,652)
10 27
(6] ()]
(27,312) (22,145)




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known as Ingenleo ePayments India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asat 3! March 2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(14)

(1s)

(16)

Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade payahles
Trade payables
Due to related parties (Refer note no, 30)
- Dugs of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Reler note no. 29) - -
- Dues of ereditors other than miero enterprises and small enterprises * 6,074 2,370
Due to others
- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note no. 29) 0 81
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises ** 7,629 8627
13,723 11,078
Trade payables ageing schedule
Qutstandding far following perfods from due date of paymicent
As al 31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 1-3 year More than 3 years Total
MSME 0 - - . 0
Dispated dues - MSME ¥ - - F
Cihers 10,870 1,521 [RE] 158 13,690
Disputed dues - Others - - 13 5 13
Total 10,890 1,521 1,154 158 13,723

As al 31 March 2021
MSME 8l - - - #1

Disputed dites - MSME : 4 5 > :

Oihers 8480 1413 992 99 10,984
Disputed ducs - Others - 13 - - 13
Tatal 8,561 1,426 Pl 95 11,078

—_— )

* This includes Rs. 1,724 lakhs [31 March 2021 Rs.1,915 .64 lakhs] pertains 1o foreign currency payable in relation to purchase of services which i5 oulstanding for a period

more than one year. These balances are due to the ultimate holding company and other group F and are ing beyond the applicable eredit period. The
Company has subsequently remitted the entire ding amount of Rs. 1,724 lakhs. The Company did not pay any penalties / levies in this regard. Hence, no provision has
been gmised is FEMA non P as al reporling date.

** This includes Rs, 132 lakhs [31 March 2021Rs. 190 lakhs] pertains to hanl settlement err ly credited to company's Corporate bank account instead of Settlement
bank account.

Other financial liabilities

Cuirrent

Merchant deposit 83 83
Employee benefits payable 455 1,530
Creditors for capital expenditure 256 109
Total current financial linbilities 794 1,722
Provisions

Non-citrreit provisions

Graluity 138 293
Tolal nos-current provisions 238 295
Current provisions

Gratuity 191 51
Compensated absences ** 156 121
Provision for charge-backs* 44 16
Provision for tax (nef of advance taxes) 68 [
Total current provisions 1,159 056

*4 Compensated ahsences ‘The amount of the provision of Rs, 156 lakhs {31st March 2021 — Rs. 121 lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an
uncanditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
(formerly known ax Ingenico ePayments India Private Limiied)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as al 34 March 2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Movement in Provision for chiarge-backs
At the commencement of the year 6 507
Provision made during the year 99 209
Provision utilised during the year mn -
Al the end of the year Td4 716
*Provision for charge-backs: Charge-back costs are estimated on the basis of Company's past experience with merchants. Provision is made for estimated liability in respeet of
charge-bnck costs based on past trends and volume of tr ions pi | by the Comg
{17) Other linbilities

Current linbilitics
Unearned revenue (Centract liability) & 17
Advance from customers 154 145
Statutory dues pavable :
-Provident fund 16 16
-Tax deducted at source 22 123
- Goods and services tax 549 7
Employee state insuranee corporation 1 1
-Profession tax payable 1 1
-Other payables (includes payable to hants towards tax deducted at source) 1,430 1,162

Total current linbilities 2,373 1472




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(formerly known as Ingenteo ePaymenis India Private Limited)

Nofes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(18) Revenue from operations *
Sale of services 45,831 43,324
Break-up of revenue from scrvices rendered:
Payment processing services 45,240 42,791
Risk 2 system i 364 362
Integration fees 7 60
Maintenance and other services 155 111
45,831 43,324
# Refer Note No, 26 - Disclosure under Ind AS 115
(19) Other income
Interest income on bank deposits 762 1,243
Balances wnitten-back 1 25
Interest on income-tax refund 117 55
Excess provisions written back - 113
Profit on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment * [] 5
Other miscellancous income 241 3
Met gainon t of forcign exchanpe fl tion 11 49
1,132 1,493
* Represents value less than Rs, | lakh
(20) Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus T 4,836 4,723
Contribution to provident and other funds 9% 95
Gratuity 116 103
Compensated absences 64 66
Staff welfare and other employee related costs 172 62
Less; Capitalisation for intangible asset under development (205) (25)
Total employee henefits expenses 5,079 5,024
(21) Finance costs
Interest expense on lease liabilitics 104 96
Interest expense on delayed payment of y dues 4 1
108 97

; A
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Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

fornerly known as Ingenico ePaymenis India Private Limited,
1y

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Sor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(22) Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipments 356 384
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 25) 312 404
Amartisation of intangible assets 8,529 8,540
Total depreciation and amor lisation expense 9,197 9,328
(23a) Operating expenses
Bank clearing charges 33,323 30,427
Sofiware license charges 378 421
Commission 61 197
Server charges 165 135
Other operating expenses 49 163
Total operating expenses 33,976 31,343
(23b) Other expenses
Legal and professional fees 174 247
Rent ** 99 96
Contract manpower cost 509 497
Rates and taxes * = 0
Power and fuel 32 42
Repairs and maintenance - others 73 29
IT infrastructure cxpenses 527 393
Communication 29 46
Bank charges 94 12
Travelling and conveyance 36 14
Annual maintenance charges B0 36
Recruitment 9 11
Postage and courier 3 3
Printing and stationery 6 5
Advertising and marketing 79 85
Provision for chargeback 99 209
Management fees 3,450 1,021
Royalty fees 246 292
Bad debts written off 11 16
Payment to auditors (refer Note below) 20 47
Subscription fees 13 6
Allowance for expected credit loss * - 42
Miscellaneous expenses 59 167
Tatal ofher expenses 5,648 3,366
* Represent vabuc less than Rs. 1 Inkh
+# [nchudes lease rentals for short term leases and leases of lew value assets for the year.
Payment to auditors (excluding GST)
For statutory audit 20 23
For tax audit - 4
For other services - 18
Oul of pocket expenses - 2

Total payment to auditors (excluding GST) 20 47




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(formerly known as Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Confinued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(24) Amalgamation
Note: - As per the NCLT merger order, with effect from the Effective Date, the name of the T Company shall be ped from “E-Billing Solutions Private Limited" to "Ingenico

cPayments India Private Limited” in accordance with Seetion 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other rel provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as applicable. The Company was
renamed as Worldline ePayments India Private Limited with effect from 29th December, 2021,

Amalgamation of TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited with the Company

a The sharcholders of the Company approved the Scheme of Amalgamation ('the Scheme”) between E-Billing Solutions Private Limited (“the Company") and TechProcess Payment
Services Private Limited (“Transferor Company™).

b. TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited is engaged in the busi of providing p apgregation services wherein it enables merchanls to accept payments through online

t ys in partership with their acg banks. It also provides recurring payment services to its clients in the form of Electronic ¢learing system (ECS), National automated

clearing house (NACH), dircct debit, e-mandate services and such ancillary activities to payment services. Among others, it acts as an intermediary to facilitate delivery, review and
payment of bills payable to any utility provider, service provider or the like, in respect of services/ facilities or utilities availed and to receive and send i ions and/or icati
in respect of the same,

G The National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT"), Mumbai Bench on 8 Oclober 2018, apy d the Scl as per the provisions of Sections 230 and 232 of the Companies Acl, 2013. In
accordance with the Scheme, the Transferor Company is merged with the Company with an appointed date of 1 April 2017, The Scheme has become effective on 17 October 2018, being
the date on which the order of the NCLT, Mumbai Bench has been filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai by the Company. The impact of amalgamation has been given in the
financial year 2017-2018 with effect from the appointed date. The NCLT order override the requirements under Ind AS 103, Business Combinations and hence the Company has
considered the date of acquisition as | April 2017. The Company has considered the said amal ion as a busi Juisition from the appointed date.

In accordance with the provisions of the aforesaid Sck the Company discharged the purchase consideration in November 2017 by issuing 7,286 fully paid up equity shares of Rs.10
each against every 10,000 equity shares of the Transferor Company. Accordingly, for a total ideration of R5.57,251 lakhs the Company has allotied and issued 21,639,960 equity
shares of Rs 10 each at a premium of Rs 254.56 per share to the shareholders of the T) feror Company.

The NCLT arder override the requirements under Ind AS 103, Business Combinations and hence the Amalgamation has been accounted for under the "Purchase Methad® as per AS-14
Accounting for Amalgamations as referred to in the Sch of Amalgamation approved by the NCLT. Had the Company foll 1 the requi of Ind AS 103 Business
Combinations,

_the excess of consideration over assets and liabilities would be been debited to Retained eamings (net of deferred taxes) instead of Goodwill,

-All assets and Tiabilities including reserves would have been transferred nt book values instead of at their fair values;

-Equity shares issued as part of purchase consideration would have been issued at nominal value instead of at Fair value;

Al nssets and linbilities excluding reserves appearing in the books of of the Transferor Company as at 1 April 2017 have been incorporated at their fair values in the financisl
statements of the Company.

All assets and liabilities excluding reserves taken over en amalgamation and equity shares (o be issued by the Company to the shareholders of TechProcess Payment Services Private
Limited with effect from the appointed dme are as under:

Partlculars Asul
1 April 2017

ASSETS

[{A) Non-current aysels

() Property, plant ond expipment 583
(1) Other intan piblz assets 41
() Financial assets

(i) Investinents )
{ii) Loans 24
[} Oiher Minancial assets 56
[} Ineome Lo nssels (nel) 1431
() Other nssets 2446
Totul non-current assets 5484
(B) Current assets

() Financial nssets

(i} Investmenls 2,502
(i) Trade receivables 1,70
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 1307
(iv) Bank balances other than (i) above 6,591
(v} Loans 27
(vi) Other finoncial assets 329
() Cher assets 257
Tatal current assels '—w

Tatal nssets 18,621

N
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Worldline ePayments India Private Limited

(armerly knenom as Iugenico ePayments India Privafe Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(24) Amalgamation (Continued)

Amalgamation of TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited with the Company (Continued)

Particulars Asat
1 April 2017

(A) Liabilities

(1} Non-current Hahilites

(a) Financial liabililies

(1} Other [inancial abilities 49

(b) Provisions 63

(¢} Deferred tax Jiabilities (net) 31

() Other liabilities b

Tatal non-curcent Hobilities LIS
——

(1) Current linhilities

() Financial liahilities

(i) Trade payables

1. Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises =

2. [hees of ereditors other than micro enterpriscs and small enterprises 2,353

(iiy Other financial liabilities 663

(b Provisions 116

(e} Oiher linbililies 220

[(dhy Current tax liabilitres (net) 16K

[ Total current lahilities 3458

Total liabilities 3,603
——]

Nt wsxels faken over 15,018
—_—e

Purchase comideration 57251

(Gaodwlill 42,233

Goodwill arising on account of the has been ised over period of five years as per AS-14, A ing For A

(25) Leases
The Company has recognised Rs. 99 Lakhs (315t March 2021, Rs. 96 Lakhs) as rent expenses during the year which pertains to short-term leases / low value assets (Refer Note 23b)

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in note 36(b)

R Ass
Particulars Amount
ROU Asset as on 1 April 2020 #13
Add; Addition during the year 712
Deprecistion 404
ROU Asset ax on 31 March 2021 1,121
ROU Asset us an 1 April 2021 1,121
Audd- Addition during the year -
|Depresiation 31
ROU Asset as on 31 March 2022 L
—_—
Lease Liabilities
Particulirs Amiunt
Lease liability as on 1 April 2020 898
Add: Addition during the year 712
(Finance cost 46
Lease poyments 457
Lease liability as on 31 March 2021 1,249
Lease liability as an | April 2021 1,248
Add; Addition dusing the year g
Fimnee cost 104
Lease payments 403
Lease lability as on 31 March 2022 950
—_—
Current 338
MNon-current all
950
—_—
Amaount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars Amaount
Depreciation charged during the year on ROU assets i
Finanea eost on the lease linbalily 14
Total 416
_—




Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
Gormerly known as Ingenica ePayments India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(26) Disclosure under Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The C is engaged in the busi of providing payment processing services.

Reconciliation of revenue as per Ind AS 115

| Particulars Year ended Year endil)
31 March 2022 31 Mah 2021

Sale of services 45811 43,324
Total 45831 43324

— )
The Company's revenug is primarily from providing payment processing services. All the is derived primarily fram the in India.

The billing to customers follow different schedules based upon the nature and type of services being transferred. The billing is generally made on a monthly basis and payable within
contractually agreed credit pedod.

There is no revenue to be recopnised in future related to perfi bligations that are isfied (or partially satisfied) as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

Applying the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing comy if et
contract inception it is expected that the period between when the entily transfers a promised service to a customer and when the customer pays for that service will be one year or less.

The Company applies practical expedient in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about ining perf bligations that have original expected duration of one
year or less.

Since the Company's revenue is primarily from providing payment processing services and such busi of providing pay P ing services itute a single busi wment, no de-

segregation of revenue is being done by the company. (Refer note 32)

(27) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(a)

Contingencies
1 Claims against the Company not ncknowledged as debis in respect of income-tax demand and payment to Incame Tax Authority are as below.

Asat As ot

Anesment Year 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

2003-2004 6 16

2004-2005 20 20

2005-2006 1 11

2006-2007 5 ]

2007-2008 146 146

2008-2009 9 9

20172018 1,219 1,219

2018-2019 3 3

Aggregate Income Tax demand 1428 1429

Payment made 1o Incoma Tax Authority

against AY. 2017-2018 121 1213

Net aggregate Income Tax demand * 210 pali)

M considers these elaims/d ds are ot tenable against the Campany, and therefore no provisien for these contingency has been hlished

2 The income tax muthorities have disallowed cerlain exp apgrepating Rs 179 lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs, 179 lakhs) during the the course of p dings for years
from assessment year 2003-04 10 nssessment year 2007-08. The Company is contesting against these disallowances at various levels with the income-tax authorities. Manag: beli that
the outstanding matters are not tenable against the Company, and therefore no provision for these contingency has been established

3 The Company had received netice under Scction 148 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 along with notice issued under section 142(1) of the Act for the reason that the Comparny received large
amount of moncy by way of share application money/share capital of Rs. 1,505 lakhs with high share premium. The Company filed a wril petition in the Bombay High Court, challenging the
Nolice, The Hon'ble Bombay High Court passed an crder dated 8 December 2016 pranting interim relief to the pri fings initiated under Section 147 of the Act in respect of
TechProcess for financial year 2008-09. Order Giving effect to the High Court order is not yet received by the Company. Furiher, no demand has been received so far from the income tax
dey The Company is confident of obtaining f ble verdict in this matter".

4 Performance puarantees issued by bank and owstanding as on 31 March 2022 Rs. 5,616 Lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs. 4,480 lakhs).

5 In February 2017, TechProcess Payment Services Private Limited (formerly TechProcess Payment Services Limited), now merged with the Company had cancelled the ESOP scheme 2016 and
ESOP scheme 2012 with an expratia comp jon to the employ d in the said Sch 17 ployees, including the ex-CEQ filed a suit in the Bombay High Court, secking a stay
on the cancellation of the Scheme or secked a compensation of Rs. 1,602 lakhs.

On 6 May 2021, the Company, Mr. Bikramjit Sen and the erstwhile option holders entered into a Setilement Agreement through which they setiled all existing disputes and differences, which
form the subject matter of the aforestated arbitrations. In accordance with the tems of the Seitl Agr the Company, Mr. Bikramjit Sen and the erstwhile option holders have
vithd, all petitions and applications filed by them before the High Court and the Ld. Sale Arbitrator. As per the Settlement Agreement, Worldline ePayment India Private Limiled (erst while
Ingenico ePayments India Private Limited) paid a total amount of Rs. 719 \akhs on 3 June 2021, The Company has settled the same by utilising provision in the books against ESOP scheme
stood at s 267 lakhs as on 31 March 2021 and Rs. 452 lakhs reimbursed by holding company, Worldline e-Commerce Solutions BV/SRL (erst while Ingenico e-Commerce Solutions
BYBA/SPRL) as a hinal settlement,

6 In February 2019, the Supreme Court of India in its judgement clanified the applicability of allowances that should be idered to bligations under Employees Providen! Fund Act,

1952, However, there are numercus interpretative aspeets related to the judgement, including the effective date of application. In view of the above, the Company has assessed the liability which
is not significant. The Company will continue to assess any further developments in this matter for the implications on financial statements, if any.

7 In April-May 2018, the Company found out that there was a shortfall in setlement funds due from wallet company, which was integrated as a payment oplion for the Company's merchants,
Tnvestigations revealed that for many transactions in April-May 2018, the Company had received ‘success” confirmation and passed it on fo merchants for onward delivery of goods and services.
The wallet company has claimed to have passed on ‘failed” status to the Company, due to which no moneys were received but disbursements were made to merchants by the Company. The
Company believes prima facie that the status of transactions have been tampered in transit. The Company conducted a forensic study and has already reported the matter to law enforcement
authorities. The matter is in progress with law enft authorities. The Company had made closing provision of Rs 271 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Rs 271 lakhs for the year
ended 31 March 2021).

8 During the year ended 31 March 2019, ene of the employees of the Company isapproprimted funds aggregating to Rs 9 lakhs into his own personal bank account. The concemned employee
admitted the act. The Company filed police compliant in January 2019 and filed First Information Repart in March 2019, The matter is in progress with law enforcement nuthorities.
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{formerly knowi as Ingenico ePaymenis lidia Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

(27) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (Coniinued)

9 The Company has received order dated 14 September 2021 for payment of stamp duty of Rs, 402 lakhs and subsequently, notice of demand dated 16 March 2022 for payment of stamp duty of
Rs.402 lakhs and penalty of Rs 338 lakhs from Collector of Stamps, Enforcement I - Mumbai in connection with the scheme of amal ion b the Company and TechProcess Payment
Services Private Limited, approved by the NCLT, Mumbai Bench on 8 October 2018.

The Company has filed an appeal against the said order with the Chief Controlling Revenue Authority, Pune. Based on legal opinian, the Company does not foresee any autflow in this regard.

10 The Company has received an order dated 27 January 2022 from Assessment Officer against Professional Tax Assessment for the year 2017-2018 with a demand of Rs. 17 lakhs. The Company
has deposited Rs. 4 Lakhs i.e, 25% of total demand under protest and has filed an appeal challenging such d d, which is pending with the Deputy Commissioner of Profession Tax
(Appeals). Further, management belicves that this cutstanding malter is not tenable against the Company, and therefore no provision for this ingency has been ised

(b) Capital commitmenis
Esti d ameunt of remaining to be ted on capital account and nol provided for (nel of advances) as on 31 March 2022 is Mil (31 March 2021; Nil)

(28) Earnings per share

|Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2020

Loss aliributable to the cquity holders of the Company (Amount in Lakhs) (5,174) (7.652)
Weightod sverage munlber of equity shares 22,637,413 21637413

Earnings per share (basic and dilited) (22.86) (33.80)
Foe value por equity share (Rs) 1n (11

(29) Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Dievelop Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are required 1o be made relating to dues to

Micro and Small Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records availabl with the Company, the following discl are made for the amounts due to the Micro and Small
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

() the principal amoiunt and the interest dus thereon {10 be shown separatcly) remainin g unpaid to ony supplier ot the end of each 0 81

BECOUMILINg year,

(1) the armount of interest paid by (he buyer in terms of section 16 of the Miro, Smiall and Medium Enterprises Development Act, - -
2006, along with the amount of the payinent made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each secouning year,

(e the wmount of intersst due and payahle for the period of delay in making payment {which have been poid but beyond the - a
sppointad day during the year) bt without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises
Development Act, 2006, *

() the amoun of interest acerued aud remaining unpaid ol the cnd of each secounting year, and * - 0

(€} the motint of fusther interest remuining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unil such date when the interest dues
above are actually pand o the small enterprise, for the purpose of Jisall £ a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the W 4
Micr, Small and Mediun Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

* Represent value less than Rs. 1 lakh

(30) Related party transactions
(a) Related parties

Sr. Name of the party MNature of relationship
No

1 Worldline 5.4 Ultimate holding company

2 Wanldiine e-Commeree Solufions BV/SRL ferst while Ingenico e-Commerse Solutions BVBA/SPRL) Holding compary

3 Worldiine 1654 SA (fomerly known as Ingenico 5.A) Fellow subsidiary

4 Global Collect Services B V. Fellow subsidiary

5 Retoll Intemational Holding 548 Fellow subsidiary

6 Ingenico [ntemational Indin Private Limited Fellow subsdiary

7 MRL Posnet Private Limiled Fellow subsidiary

8 Weorldline Global Savices Privale Limited Fellow subsidiary

9 Worldline India Private |imited Fellow subsidinry

() Key managerial personnel

Sr.  Particulnrs Nature of relationship
MNa

I Mr. Romesh Narasimhan Director and CEQ

2 M Ramaknshoan Ramamuthy Director

3 Ms Esho Mehta (resipned wee £ 2nd June 2022) Company Socretary

a4 Mr. Eushol Shah (appointed woe £ 1 3th June 2022) Company Secretary
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(30) Related party transactions (Continued)

(c) Details of transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 March 2022

Sr.  Nature of Transaction Ultlmate Holding Company Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary  Key Management Personmnel Total
No

A Transaciions

1 Managerial remuneration

Mr. Ramesh Narasimhan - - - 290 90

Mr. Ramekrizshnon Ramamurthy - - - bl 74
1 Remuneration to Company Secretary

Fsha Mehta - = 2] 14 14
3 Renl, Repair and maintenance

Ingenico Inlemalienal India Private Limited - - 35 - 35

Workdline India Private Limited - - 263 - 263

ML Posnet Private Limited - - ] - #

Worldline Global Services Private Limited - B 7 - 7

4 IT infrastructure expenses

Warldline Global Services Private Limitel - - 6% - 62
5 Management fees

Hetail Internaticnal Holding 5. A5 - - 3,450 - 3450

& Stoffwelfare and other emplovee relaled coals
Hetail International Helding 5 A8 - - N - bl

7 Royalty fees
Worldline [G5A 54 (formerly known as Ingenien S.4) - - 167 - 167
Worldline § A 79 - - - 79

B Revenue from services (Risk management services)
Worldlinz e-Commerce Solutions BV/SRL (erst while Ingenico e-

Commerce Selutions VR A/SPRL) - 200 é 200
9 Revenue from services (Payment Gateway transaction process)

Glabal Colleet Serviees BV, - - 305 - 305

Workdline India Private Limilod - - L] - &0
10 Reimbursement of deputation charges

Worldline 1GSA SA (formarly kaown as Ingenico 5.A) . - 2 - 2
1 = of expenses i |

Ingenice [ntemational India Private Limited - - 4 . 3
B Closing balances
1 Trade receivahles

Worldline e-Comimerce Solutions BVASRIL (erst while Inpenico e- a 2

Commeree Sohwtions BVBASPRL) - =

Worldlinz IGSA SA (lormerly known as Ingenico 3 A) = . 6 g I3

[ngenice ltemational Indin Private Limited - - 4 - 4

Global Collect Services BY, 3 B& 86

Wortdline India Private Limited - - i3 - 13
2 Security deposit receivable

Worldline Indin Private Limited - - 123 - 123
3 Trade payables

Worldime IGEA SA (Tormerly known as Ingenico 5.A) - - 1219 - 1219

Retail Inemational Holding S.A S . - 4,580 - 4,580

Ingenico nternational India Private Limited - - 1 . 4

Woebdline India Private Limitod - - L] - 103

Worldline 8.4 72 - - = T2

Waorldline Global Services Private Limited - - 31 - 31

MR L Posnet Privase Limived L - & - &
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(¢} Details of transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 March 2021

Sr.  Nature of Tramsaciion Ultimate Holding Company Helding Company Fellow Subsidiary  Key Management Personnel Total
No

A Transactions

1 Managerial remuneration
Mr. Ramesh MNarssimhan - - - 177 177
Mr, Ramskrishnan Ramamurthy - - - 118 1e

2  Remuneratlon to Company Secreiary

Esha Mchia - - - 12 12
3 Relmbursement of expenses lncurred by

Tngenica Tntemational India Privare Limited - - 31 - 3
4 Security deposil paid

Worldline India Private Limited - - 123 - 123
5 Rent, Repair and maintenance

Worldline India Private Limited . - 80 - 0
& Blanagement fees

Retail International Holding S.A 8 - - 1021 - 1021
T Royalty fees

Worldline 1GSA SA (formerly known as Ingenico S.4) - - 82 - 92

B Revenue from services (Hisk managenent services)
Worldline e-Commerce Solutions BV/SRL (erst while Ingenico ¢

Commerce Solutians BVDA/SPRL) : 5 ' o
9 Revenue from services (Paymenl Gateway tramaction process)
Gilobal Colloct Services BLY. - - 33 - 53
Worldiine India Privite Limited - - 3 - 3
B Closing balances
1 Trade recelvalibes
Worldline e-Commerce Solulions BV/SRL (orst while Ingenica c- 2 7
Conmerce Soluions BVBAJSPRL) ) )
Global Collect Services BV, - - 28 - 28
‘Worldline Indin Private Limited - - 14 - 4
2 Security deposit receivable
Werldline India Private Limited - - 123 - 123
3 Trale payables
Worldline 1GSA SA (formerly known s Ingenico 8.A) - - 1.106 - 1,106
Retail Intemativnal Holing S.A.8 - - 1.210 - 1210
Ingenico Intemntional Indin Private Limited - - 4 - 4
Worldline India Private Limitel - - 50 * 30

(31) Share-based payments
(a) Long-term incentive plan (Phantom shares plan)
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company launched a Long-Term Incentive Plan (L'T1) for the benefit of key employees, subject to the satisfaction of centain performance and service

considerations:

hi of Biti Granted Phantom Evaluntlon daie Daie of paynent upan|

shnres oresence|

[EBS inlegration roadmap 0% of the canditional 31 March 2019 30 April 2019
awand

NPCLRBI License 5% of the conditional 31 March 2019 30 Apnl 2019
awand

(Ciboarding Top Billers 3% of the conditionsl 31 March 2019 30 April 2019
owand

Financial targets 20092020 47% of the conditional 31 December 2020 31 March 2021
anvand

* Revenue torgels year 2021 13% of the conditienal 31 Decernber 2021 31 March 2022
award

Award means conditional award of Ingenica Phantom shares to the benefit of such employee, subject to the vesting in accordance with the plan_ Ingenico Phantom shares means a unit
representing the right to receive a cash amount based on Ingenico share price.

* As at 31 March 2022, the Company has paid 87% of the rewards to the employees for partially achieving the target and for the balance 13% an opporunity of revised target was given 1o the
same set of employees for year 2021 which was again partially achieved and thus there is onguing discussion with the Worldline group for payment of the balance amount.

The Company paid Rs. 556 lakhs in August 2021 (31 March 2021 Rs. NIL) on achievement of other performance conditions as per plan by their respective evaluation dates to ils employees and
recognised an expense of Rs. NIL in 31 March 2022 (Rs. 149 lakhs in the staiement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2021). The balance pravision of Rs. 107 lakhs as on 31 March
2022 (31 March 2021 Rs. 664 lakhs) which will be prid on confirmation by the Worldline group.

(32) Segment reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrele financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker for 8

the Company's perft and allecating the r tased on an analysis of various perfi indicators by husi and geographic seg

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of providing payment processing services which conslitute a single £ i 21 These activifies are conducted only in one geographic
wviz India. Therefore, the discl i of Ind AS 108§ t Reparting™ are not applicabl

Information nbout mpjor customers e~
o \-UNHJ{}

The Company has 1 custemer (previous year: | customer) contributing more than 102 of the tula!)t\\ejn'_f:rﬁndilmé’

are attributed to the payment processing services which constitute a single b i "_'/-" b
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(33) Employee benefits
(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees al the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations.
The ibutions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Gov of India. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further
e | nor any tive obligation.

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

o6 95

Empluyee contribution to provident fund

Included in "Contribution to provident and other funds' under employee benelits expense (Refer Note 20)

(1) Compensated absences
The Company accrues for unutilised leave, a defined benefit plan based on the available leave balance standing to the credit of the employees at year-end. The value of such leave balance

eligible for cacry forward, is d ined by il valuation as at the Balance sheet and is charged 1o the Statement of profit and loss in the period determined.
Actuarial assumptions:
|Particulars Asal As ol
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Dhscount rale 6.09% G.06%
Fulure salary inereases 9% ¥
Mortality rate TALM (2012-14) Ultimale TALM (2012-14) Ultimate
Alirition Rate 23% 18%
Mormal relirement apge 58 yuars 58 years
The estimates of future salary increases considered in the ial valuation takes into account factors like inflation, seniority, p ions and other rel factars.
{¢) Defined benefit plans
Gratuity:
The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity.
The amount of gratuity payable on reti ination is the empl last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of’
service, The gratuity plan is » funded plan and the Company makes contribution to recognised funds in India.
Particulars Gratuity
Asat As ot
31 March 2022 31 Murch 2021
[hsceunt rale 609% 6.06%
Fulure salary increases 9% W
Expectad relurm on plan assels 6.09% 6.06%
Attrilion ride 3% 8%
hortality Rote TALM (2002-14) Ultimate [ALM (200 2-14) Ultim ate
Notes:
1. Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities for the estimated term of the obligations.
2, Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, p ion and other rel factors.
3. Assumptions regarding future mertality experience are set in dance with the statistics published by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.
The amaunis recognised in the balance sheet and movements in the net defined benefit obligation (DBO) aver the year are as follows :
Changpe in the present value of obligation Asat Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 462 413
Interest cost 7 ped
Past sorvice cost . -
Current servios ensl L1 86
Besefits paid “7y (36}
Remeninrenent due o
| Actuarial Toss/{gain) arising from change in financial assumptions n 3
Achiarial Toss!(gain) arising on aceount of experience changes 1 (39
Aetuarial (gain)loss atising on account of demogaphical sssumptions (19 10
Present value of obligation at the end of the year - 519 462
e
The ts recognised in the balance sheet and movements in the fair value of plan assels over the year are as follows :
(Change in the fair value of plun assets As at As et
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Fair value of plan assets nt the beghnning of the year 116 138
Interest on plan assels 7 L
Actuarial gainsflosses) i 1
[Comtributions made by the Company 13 15
[tenefits paid “n (36)
100 116

Fuir value of plan sssets at the end of the year

1
\ 7o\
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(33) Employee benefits (Confinued)

Recanelliation of present value of deflued benelit obligation and the fair value of nssels Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Prescnt value of favled oblipation o the end of the year 519 461
Fair valic of plan nssats as al the evd of the period flomy (116
Deficit of funded plan 419 346
—_—
Amaunt recognlsed In the statement of profilt and lass Year enced Year endad
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 9 6
Tast service cosl -
Literest cost Pl 1"
Total expense recognized in the stuleme ot of profit and los 116 103
—
Amaunt recopnlsed in other comprehensive income Yenr ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R i3 during the year due to
(Changes in financin] assumptions 0] 3
[Changes in demographic assumplions (i) 10
Experience adjustments 11 (39
Actunl return on plan asscts less inferest on plan psscts n {n
i) {27}

| Arount recognised in other comprehensive income during ihe year

(d) Sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact en defined benefit abligation end of the perlod

sr Particulars
No

1. Discown rate +100 basis paints
2. Dhscount rate - 1 hasis points
3. Salory Increase Rate +1%
4. Salory Increase Rtate -1%

5. Auirition Rate +1%

. Atrition Rate -1%

Year ended Year ended|

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
S0 439

£ 4B6

546 482

sn 4z

s 457

532 4656

(e) Expected luture benefit payments

The sbove sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant, In practice it is unlikely to occur, and
may be comrelated. The methods and types of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared lo previous perod,

|Expected eash flows for follawing year Year ended Year endod|
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Year 1 14 11
Year2 T 57
Year 3 75 55
Year 4 57 3
Year 5 47 43
Mext 5§ yeurs 14 143
(34) Income tax expense
(n) 1 tax exp in the stat t of profit and loss comprises;
|Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 Murch 2022 31 March 2021
Current tax
Current tax . -
Total current lax expense - -
Deferred fax
Defemed tax (1871} 3311
Total deferved tax (henefithespe e (1871) 331
Income {4% expense {1LA71) 3311
{(b) OCIscetion deferred tnx related to items recognised in OCI during the period:
|Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Net loss {(Gain) on remeasurcment of defined benefil plans [£}] [t
() Reconciliation of tnx ex| and the ace ing profit puted by applying income tax rate:
Particulurs Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 3| March 2021
Loss before ax (1,045 (43413
Tax rate of 25.168% (2019-20: 25.168%) 25.168% 25.168%
Computed lax expense (1,773 (1,083)
Goodwill un Mer per o deductible - 4484
Defermed tax due to true up of losses (21m (%2)
Dthers 131 12
Income lax expense (LET1) asn

':‘_“'-—“ S
£0 AnCO-

- A%,

changes in some of the assumptions
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(35) Fair value measurcment
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, includi their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair valug

informalion for financial assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value those includes cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, irade
receivables and trade payables,

(a) Financial instruments by category

31 Murch 2022 Carrying amount Fair value
Falr value through profit or Amortised enst Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3
loss
Financial nssets
MNon-current
Tnvestment in cquity shares - 1 = 1 -
Security deposils - 354 = ’ .
Current =
Trude receivables - 5874 - -
Security deposils = 2 5 -
(Cash ond cash equivalents - 29,677 - . -
Other hank balances S 34 - - -
Interest aoonued bus not due on ficed deposits with bank - Rl - - %
Unbilled receivables - S8l - =
(i hers - reccivobiles - " - - -
Tatal financial nssely - 37077 - 1 =
Financial Babilides
Non-current
Iease lizhililics (318 - B
Current
Merchant deposil " ] T Z 2
Tracde payables - 13,723 - - -
Emploves benefits payable 455 - - -
|Craditors for capital expenditure 156 - - -
I.case linbilities 339 . . -
Tutal fnancial liabilities - 15467 - - -
—
31 March 2021 Carrying amount Fair vilue
Fair value through profit or Amarilied cost Tevel | Level 2 Level 3
Finaneial ussels
Non-current
Investment in equity shancs ] - I
| Security deposiis - 366 - “ i+
Tnterest accraed but not due on fixed deposiis with bank - 08 - - =
Fixed deposits with bank (including assels on licn) B 2,337 - < -
Current
Trade seecivables - 4,210 - 2 =
[Securily deposils - 2 - i =
(Cash and cash equivalents - 6,765 - = =
(Oiher bank balances . 18,535 5 = =
Interest accnsed bul not due on fived deposits with bank # 358 = £
Urihilled reccivables - 1,208 - - -
[Others - receivables - ] - + 5
Total Ainancial asseis - 4,062 - 1 -
Financlol labilities
[Non-current
Lease linhilitics - 950 -
Current
Merchant deposit - 83 - - -
Trode payables - 11,078 - » =
Employes bencfits payabla 1.530 - - =
Creditors for capital expendilue - 1og E - .
Lease lalility 293 - - -
Totnl financlal Habilities - 14,049 - -

Note: Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade receivables, unbilled receivables and trade payables as at 31 March 2022, 31 March 2021 approximate the fair value.
Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of bank depasits, other financial assets and other financial liabilities subsequently d at ised cost is not significant in each of the
periods presented.
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(35) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(b} Fair value hierarchy
The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs 1o valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

Level | — Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither
supported by prices from observable current market transactiens in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

The following table ises fi ial assets and liabilities measured al fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (bul fair value
disclosure are required):

|Financinl assets measured at fair valoe al 31 March 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total|
Investmen! in eequity shares of Saraswat Co-Operative Bank = 1 - L
Financial assets measured st fair value at 31 March 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal

Issvestment in equily shares of Saraswat Co-Operative Bank - I . 1

(e) Valuation technigues used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- the use of quoted market prices or mutual fund houses quotes (NAY) for such instruments. This is included in Level 2.

- the fair value of the ining financial i is determined using discounted cash flow analysis for which third party valuer is appointed. This is included in Level 3. The Company did
not use the services of third party valuer as at 31 March 2022, 31 March 2021 for any of the financial instruments as it were not applicable during these years.

() Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at nmortised cost

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade receivables, unbilled receivables and trade pay bles as at 31 March 2022, 31 March 2021 approximate the fair value.
Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financial assels and other financial liabilitics subsequently measured at amortised eost is not significant in each of the
periods presented, They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due 1o the inclusion of unobservable inputs, including counter party credit risk.

(36) Financial risk management framework

PRTIRS s

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the and oversight of the Company’s risk k. The Board is responsible for developing and

ing the Company’s risk policies, The Board holds regular meetings on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor isks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its traiming and management
Jards and p , aims to maintain a disciplined and constrctive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board oversees how t monitors compli with the Company's risk I policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board is assisted in its role by intemal audit team from Worldline Group (formerly known as Ingenico Group). Intemal audit undertakes both
regular and adhoe reviews of risk management contrals and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board of Worldline Group (formerly known as Ingenico Group).

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Risk Exposure ariving from Memsurement Management of rlsk

Crodit risk Cush and cash equivalents, trade receivables, finmncial Apeing analysis Thversification of bank deposits, credil limils and regular monilonng.
nssets measared al amorisal cost, Credil rmtings

Liguidity nsk “Trade payahles and other Hobilities Reolling cash fow forecasts Availability of surplus eash, committed credit line and bomrowing faciliies

Market risk - forcign Recognised financial nssets and liahilities not Cash flow forecasting Regular sonitoring 1o keep the net exposure al an aceepiable level,

exchiange denominsted in Indian rupee (INR) Sensilivity analysis

Price risk Tnvestment in mutuzl funds Creadit ratings Torifolic diversification and regular monitoring

a). Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 10 meet its 1 obl and anises principally from the Company's
receivables from customers.

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure o credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual chareteristics of each H . g t also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk
of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails 1o make contractual payments when they fall due. This definition of default is d ined by idering the busi i in

which Company operates and other macro-sconemic factors.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company, markel intelligence and goodwill, Outsianding customer receivables are regularly
maonitared.
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(36) Financial risk management framework (Contined)
a). Credit risk (Continued)

The Company has established an all for impai that rep its expected credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The management uses a simplified approach for the
purpose of compulation of expected credit loss for trade reccivables and 12-month expected credu loss for other rccelvahles An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an
individual basis for major parties. In addition, a large number of minor are combined into I categ and d for impai collectively. The calculution is based

on historical data of actual losses. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect (o trade receivables as low.

L y of the Company's exg {o credit risk by age of the oustanding from various cusiomers is as follows:
(Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 31 March 2022 3| March 2021
1.ess than & months 5856 4,151
6 months - | year 105 113
| =2 year 65 43
2.3 year 36 50
More than 3 yesrs 20 19
6081 4436
— =
Reconciliation in the allowanee for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows.
31 March 2022 " 31 Mach2021
Balance at e begimning of the year 6 453
[Bad debits written off out of opening provision (18) (1T
Provision (et during the year = (56)
Balance at the end of the year 208 6

Chash and eash equivalents
Crednl risk on cash and cash equivalents and other deposits with banks is limited as the Company g Ily invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assipned by extemal eredit rating

£ lingly the Comg iders that the related credit risk is Jow. Impairment on these items are measured on the 12-month expected credit loss basis.
b). Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Ccmpnny will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligati iated with its financial liabilities that are setlled by delivering cash or another financial asser.
The Company's appreach to liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its linbilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed

conditions, without incurring unacceplai:le losses or nisking damage to the Company”s reputation.

The Company's {reasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining liquidity through investments in liquid funds and other itted credit lines. M t moniters rolling forecasts of
the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash cquivalents an the basis of expected cash flows.

Maturities of financial linbilities

The below table analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual ilies. The 15 disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash
flows, balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Carrying amount Contractual eash Nows Contractual cash Mows
31 March 2022 <12manths Uplo one year More than one year
Nen-terivative Dnancial Habililies
Trode payahles 13,723 13,713 -
Other financial Liabilites 794 T -
Lcase Hatilities 950 413 663
31 March 2021
Trade payahles 1,078 11,078 -
Other financial liabalities 1,723 1,723 -
Lease lishilities 1,249 199 950

(c). Market risk

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments, Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial i Tuding foreign y receivables and payables and long term debt. The Company is exposed to
markel risk primarily related to foreign exchangc rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of the investments. Thus, the exp to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing
activities and revenue gy ing and op g activities in forcign currency.

(i). Currency risk

The Company is d to y risk on account of foreign currency transactions including recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional
currency (%), pmnanly in respect of Lums(G) and United States Dellar($). The Cmnpm:y ensures that the net exposure is kept 10 an aceeptable level.
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(36) Financial risk management framework (Continued)
Exposure to currency risk
The Company's exposure lo foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows.
As at 31 March 2022

Financial assels EUR (in lakhs) Amount (INR in Lakhs) USD {in lukhs) Amount (INR in
Lakhs)

[ Trade receivables * o 21 - -

Met exposure to foreign camency {assets) o 21 - -

Financial labilities

| Trade payables o9 531 L 1

Het exposure 1o foreign currency (linbilities) 69 5471 L] 1

As at 31 March 2021

Financial assels EUR (in lakhs) Amount (INI in Lakhs) TS0 (in [akhs) Amount (INR in
Lakhs)

Trade receivables [} 21 - *

Nel expostine 10 foreign cumency (assels) o 21 = 7|

Financial Babilliles

Trode payables by 24 o 5

Met exposire to foreipn carrency (liahilities) 17 1314 L] 5

# Represents value lesa than Ha. 1 Lakh
Sensitivity analysis

Any change with respect to strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against various currencies as at 31 March 2022, 31 March 2021 would have afTected the measurement of financial
instruments denominated in respective currencies and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular inlerest rates.

Impact on profit before fax

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
EUR
- Increase by 5% (293) {115
- Docrease by 326 293 1s
Usn
- Inerease by 5% (0} )
« Decrease by 5% o o

(ii). Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair vilues of fixed interest bearing invesiments
because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will Muctuate because of fluctuations in the
interest rates.

Exposure to inferest rate risk

The Company's depositsfloans are all at fixed rate and are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carying amount
nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in markel interest rates.

Financing arrangements

The Campany has access to following undrawn borrowing Facilities at the end of reporting period

31 March 2022 315t March 2021
Expiring within one year (bank guarantoe) 1584 3,020
Expiring beyond onc year £l i

(37) Financial ratio analysis
Yeur ended Variance %
SrMNo. Particulirs Rasls 318t March, 2022 315t March, 2021
1 Current ratio Times  Currenl asscts / Cument linhilities 01 202 l
z Retum on Equity k) Prefil after tax f Average Shareholders’ Equity =14.76% 18.43% =20
3 Trade Receivahles iumover ratio Times  Revenue from operalions / Average trade receivabla S0 744 12%
4 Trade Payables Tumever Times Operating Cost ! Average trade payables 74 268 %
5 et Capital Tumover Times  Revenue from operalions { Working capitals 246 74 -10%%
6 et Profit{Loss) Margin % Mt Profitf{L.oss) after tax { Revenue from operations -11.29% -17.66% 36%
7 Returm on Copilal employed Y Farnings Before Interest and Lol [ Capital Employedi) ~2LA0% 112 2%
$ Working Capital = Curreni Assets - Current Liabilities
# Eamings before Interest and Tax = Profit befons tax + Finance costs (recopnisal)
@ Capital Employed = Fquity
i} Net Profit/{Laoss) Margin (%): Improvement by 36% i the current year due to imp ing hility which in the previous year was affected mainly due impact of defermed tax and increass in

revenue
i) Return on Capital employed (%): Incrense in the ratio is on account of decroase in capital employed and inereass in Joss before interest and tax .
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(38) Transfer Pricing
The Company’'s t has developed a system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the Transfer pricing legislation under Section 92 to Section 92F of the Income
tax Act, 1961, The Company's management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm's length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have an impact on the financial
statements, particularly on the amount of 1ax expense and that of the provision for taxation.

(39) Code on Social Sccurity, 2020
The Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The effective date from which the
changes are applicable is yet to be notilied and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are yet to be framed. The Company will perform its evaluation and will give appropriate impact in its
financial statements in the perind in which, the Code becomes cffective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are framed.

(40) Reclassification of previous year amount
Certain smounts in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the current period financial statements.

(41) Subsequent event

The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through 29 September 2022, the dale on which these financials are authorized for issuance, No adjusting or significant non-adjusting event has
cecurred between 31 March 2022 and the date of auth ion of these financial that weuld have a material impact on these financial statements or that would wamant additional
disclosures.
As per our repont of even date attached.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Worldline ePayments India Private Limited
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